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Speech of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dear shareholders,

The year 2024 was a specia year that reflected the company's strength and excellence,
placing it in the lead despite the presence of many competitors and the entry of new
competitors into the market. Despite all the challenges and difficulties that the region
went through, whether from the political and social aspects, and the accompanying
rise in the prices of raw materias, wages, costs, etc., these economic challenges posed
amajor challenge to the company's ability to work, increase sales, and reduce costs in
order to increase profits. Despite this, the company was able to achieve net profits
amounting to 3,962,699 Jordanian dinars, as it completed its third decade since its
establishment.

All these achievements were made possible by the efforts of the executive
management and all the company’s employees who deserve all thanks and gratitude
for their efforts throughout the year. We look forward to continuing to establish and
develop long-term relationships with our clients and strategic suppliers. We aso pay
great attention to providing distinguished service to al our clients so that the company
remains one of the leading concrete companies in this field. We hope that the coming
year will be ayear of goodness, peace and blessings for our country Jordan under the
leadership of our beloved King Abdullah 11 bin Al Hussein and his Crown Prince His
Highness Prince Hussein bin Abdullah 11, may God protect and preserve them.

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and on my own behalf, | would like to extend my
sincere thanks to the Companies Control Department, the Securities Commission and
the shareholders. | would aso like to thank all colleagues working in the various
branches of the company for their continuous performance and giving to enhance the
company's achievements, raise its efficiency and advance it towards permanent
excellence under the patronage of the Hashemite banner led by His Majesty King
Abdullah I1.

May the peace, mercy and blessings of God be upon you,

In the name of Jamed Issa Al-Muasher
Chairman of the Board of Directors

e



Report of the Board of Directorsto the Thirty Ordinary General Assembly
At the annual meeting held on Wednesday, 26/03/2025

Dear shareholders,
The Board of Directors is pleased to present its Thirty report, stating in accordance

with the Companies Law:

Main company activities:

The company was established in 1995. Today, thank God, it is the leading company in
Jordan in the ready-mixed concrete industry in terms of service, quality and
production capacity.

The company's main headquarters is located in Amman/ Bayader Wadi Al-Seer/
Industrial Area.

P.O. Box: 851602 Amman 11185 Jordan

Tel: 06-5858110

Website: www.kingdomconcrete.jo

L ocation Product Employee

15+ 20+ 300+



http://www.kingdomconcrete.jo/




The Company's geographical locations, number of employees and their qualifications:

No. of Branch
employees
175 Al-Bayader
29 Sahab
28 Shafa Badran
22 Al-Ramtha
..... 20 Al-Zarga
10 Al-Karak
oo-50S0110 9 Al-Agaba
9 Al- Mafrag
9 Al-Azrag
7 Al- Husen
6 Dead sea
4 Al-Qastal
4 Al-Potash
: : 3 Ma’an
aslooll - N 1 Al-Potash 2
336 Total
Academic qualifications: Training cour ses:
Qualifications: Number of Coursetitle Number of
employees employees
Master 5 Certified administrative 1
accountant course
Bachdor 130 Trai nin_g dipl omain_hybrid 1
vehicle engineering
Diploma 12 Ambulance course 1
Tawjihi and 190 Jordanian certified public 1
below accountant course
Total 336 Total 4

Internal training courses are aso conducted for employees on the Company’s work,
administrative and financial matters, and special training courses for concrete pumps
and genera maintenance of machines and equipment.

Volume of capital investment - in Dinars

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

25,687,497

27,062,307

28,055,434

27,167,670

28,559,575




1. The Company’s subsidiaries:

The companies below are wholly owned by the Ready Mixed Concrete and Construction Supplies Company:

Registration

Establishment

Capital

No. of

The company No. Status date Dinar | employees Activity
-‘ n lb.‘ ,?\(r)rr\rtr;]aénsiorr:pag?/ Limited Import and export, general trade, tradein
BT laity WA e g PRy 15823 L 24/2/2008 30000 1 construction equipment, spare parts and
Construction and Liability oils
Manufacture and trade of additives for
concrete, design and implementation of
e Concrete post-tensioned concrete works, manufacture
! RINCRETE TECHNOLOGY Limited and trade of waterproofing and building
G ; Technology 053 || japility | 24772002 | 80000 30 materials, repair and rehabilitation of
pany buildings, supply and implementation of
decorative concrete, supply and
implementation of foam concrete.
. Trading in heavy equipment of all kinds,
i 'égarg (;qull n?:: Limited Spare parts, and renting equipment, cranes,
_ I dwu | Rentin F;n dySeI lin 12834 Libilit 3/9/2004 100000 12 and weights.
o _ j_ﬂ_l Heay gE U mentg y Agent of the Chinese Sany company for
e o y =quip heavy equipment and trucks.
) United Ready Mix o5 Limited 18/12/2004 | 800000 9 Production and sale of ready-mix concrete
Concrete Company Liability of al types
Limited The company's main activity: purchasing
Masafat Housing Company 48387 Liability 25/7/2017 30000 1 lands and constructing residential

apartments

9




2. Names of the members of the Board of Directors and an introductory
summary of each of them:
Board of Directors members

Suhail Jamil
Mu'asher and
Brothers Company

Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa Al-
Mu'asher

Chairman of Board of
Directors

Arabian Cement
Bahrain Holding
Company

His Excellency Sheikh Saud
Abdul Aziz Abdullah Al-
Sulaiman

Vice Chairman of Board of
Directors

Mr. Turki bin Abdullah bin
Abdulaziz AL Rahi

Board of Directors member

Mr. Mu'taz Muhammad
Mortada Abdel Hamid
Mortada

Board of Directors member

Jawdat Al-Alami &
Brothers Company

Engineer Makram Khalil
Ibrahim Al-Alami

Board of Directors member

Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Board of Directors member /
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Board of Directors member

Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Mu'asher

Board of Directors member

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi

Board of Directors member

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais

Board of Directors member

-10-




Biography of Board of Directors members
1 Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa Al-Mu'asher
Chairman of Board of Directors and represents Suhail Mu'asher and Brothers

Company
Date of Academic Bachelor of Business
member ship: 2/5/1995 qualification: Administration
Year of birth: 1958 vear of 1979
graduation:
. . . . . Towson University -
Nationality: Jordanian University: United States

Biography overview:

- Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Premier Business
and Projects CO.LTD.

- Member of the Board of Directors
of the Arab International Hotels
Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of
the Jordanian Plum Factories
Company.

2. His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz Abdullah Al-Sulaiman
Vice Chairman of Board of Directors, representing Arabian Cement Bahrain Holding

Company.
Date of Academic Bachelor'sdegreein
- 8/3/2008 T : :
member ship: qualification: | economics and finance
Year of birth: 1961 Year of 1087
graduation:
. . . . ... .| New York University -
Nationality: Saudi University: United States

Biography overview:

- Member of the Board of Directors of

the Arab Cement Company since
1997.

- Member of the Board of Directors of

Bin Sulaiman Holding Company,
working with the Sulaiman Group
since 1987.

- Member of the Financial Committee

of Sadag Company.

Member of the Insurance Committee
of the Jeddah Chamber of
Commerce and Industry.

Partner, Vice Chairman of Board of
Directors, and Managing Director of
many companies, including Zahran
Contracting Company, Mozn
Tourism Company, Rolaco
Company, and Iron Manufacturing
Company Limited.

-11-




3. Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Board of Directors member , representing Jawdat Al-Alami & Brothers

Company
Date of_ 2/5/1995 Acgdem_lc bachel_or of_C|V|I
member ship: qualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 vear of 1978
graduation:
. o : . o Purdue University -
Nationality: Jordanian University: United States

Biography overview:

- General Manager and Partner in an
exchange company from 1979-
2005.

- Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Ready Mixed
Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company sinceits
establishment in 1995 -2019.

- Genera Manager of Masafat
Specialized Transport Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Masafat Specialized Transport
Company since its establishment in
2006 to 2021.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Assas Concrete Industries Company
since its establishment in 2007 to date.

4. Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Board of Directors member and Chief Executive Officer of the company.

Date of_ /51995 Acgt;lemlc bachelpr Of.CIVI|
member ship: qualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of 1976

graduation:
e : o University of
Nationality: Jordanian University: Birmingham — Britain

Biography overview:

- Engineer at the Civil Aviation
Authority from 1976 to 1979.

- Partner in an engineering
consulting office from 1979 to
date.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Masafat Specialized Transport
Company since its establishment in
2006 to date.

Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Assas Concrete Industries Company
since its establishment in 2007 to date.

_12-




5. Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami
Board of Directors member

Date of Academic Master of Business
member ship: 20/7/2008 qualification: Administration
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of 1999

graduation:
. o . . o Purdue University -
Nationality: Jordanian University: United States

Biography overview:

- Member of the Board of Directors
of Assas Concrete Industries

Company.

6. Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi
Board of Directors member

Date of 2/5/2009 Academic Master's degree in
member ship: qualification: | Mechanical Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of 1976

graduation:
Nationality: Canadian University: Unlversty.of.London B
Britain

Biography overview:

- Heworked in thefield of
petroleum investmentsin the
United Arab Emirates.

- Member of the Board of Directors
of Masafat Specialized Transport
Company sinceits founding in

2006 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors of
Assas Concrete I ndustries Company.

13




7. Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais

Board of Directors member

Date of _ 6/5/2021 Acg;lem_lc Maﬁq‘s degreein
member ship: qualification: finance
Year of Birth: 1964/11/22 Year of 1994
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: University of Jordan

Biography overview:

- Anindependent financia and
economic consultant until now.

- Executive Director of Tafawuq
Financia Investments Company from
January 1, 2007, until May 17, 2021.

- Director of the Investment and
Financial Brokerage Department at
the Bank of Jordan for the period
from 7/1997 to 12/2006.

- Genera Director of the University
Office for Computer Servicesfor the
period from 10/1996 to 7/1997.

- Economic and statistical researcher at
the Department of General Statistics
for the period 03/1988 until 03/1996.

- Financia advisor, financia broker,
investment trustee, and investment
manager accredited by the Securities
Commission.

- Member of the Board of Directors at
Asas Concrete Industries Company
until now.

Member of the Board of Directors of
Tafawuq Financial Investments
Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of the
Syndicate of Financial Services
Companies.

Member of the Board of Directors of the
Amman Stock Exchange for the period
from 09/2002 to 09/2005.

Member of the Board of Directors of the
Association of Capital Commissioners
for the period from 03/2002 to 10/2002.
Member of the Board of Directors of the
Jordanian Company for Pioneering
Projects for the period from 2007 -
2012.

Member of the Board of Directors of the
United Glass Industries Company for
the period 2003-2004.

Member of the Board of Directors of the
Bahraini Jordanian Technology and
Communications Company 2001.

8. Dr. Marwan Jamil | ssa Al-Muasher

Board of Directors member

Date of. 112016 Acgqlem_lc PhD in computer
member ship: qualification: engineering
Year of Birth: 1956 Year of 1981

graduation:
T : o Purdue University -
Nationality: Jordanian University: United States

Biography overview:

- Senior Vice President of the World
Bank for Foreign Affairs 2007.

- Deputy Prime Minister and Minister
of Foreign Affairs 2002-2004.

- Jordanian Ambassador to the United
States of America 1997-2001.

14




0. Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Murtada Abdul Hamid Murtada
Board of Directors member, representing the Arabian Cement Bahrain
Holding Company.

Date of Academic Bachelor of
member ship: 01/01/2022 qualification: Commerce
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of 1996

graduation:
T . o Tanta University —
Nationality: Egyptian University: Egypt

Biography overview:

- Deputy Chief Executive Officer for - Heheld severd positionsin the
Financial Affairs at the Arab financial management of Unilever
Cement Company from 2013 to Mashreq Company, and his last
date. position in the company was the

- General Manager of the Financial group financial controller, in addition
Operations Sector at Bupa Arabia to the company’s strategy
for Cooperative Insurance 2012- implementation officer.

2013. - Hehas afellowship and membership

- Genera Manager of Group in the American Ingtitute of Certified
Financial Affairs at Halwani Public Accountants and Auditors
Brothers Company 2007-2012. since 2002.

10.  Turki bin Abdullah bin Abdulaziz Al Rajihi
Board of Directors member, representing the Arabian Cement Bahrain Holding
Company.

Date of _ 01/01/2024 Acgc_jemic Bachelor of Industrial
member ship: qualification: Management
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of 1997

graduation:
King Fahd University of
Nationality: Saudi University: | Petroleum and Minerals
- Saudi Arabia

Biography overview:

- Member of the Board of Directors - Member of the Board of Directors of
of “Arabian Cement Company” the National Committee for Prisoner
since August 29, 2016 Care “Tarahum” since 2018

- Member of the Board of Directors - Heserved as General Manager of
of Al Rajhi Investment Company “Al Rajhi Plastic Factory Company”

- Member of the Board of Directors between 2000 and 2018
of the Abdullah bin Abdulaziz Al - Heserved as General Manager of the
Rajhi Charitable Foundation National Polyester Fiber Factory

Company between 2005 and 2018

-15-




Names and ranks of senior management persons and an introductory summary

of each of them:

Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Board of Directors member and Chief Executive Officer of the company.

Date of_ 2/5/1995 Acg;lemlc bachel_or Of.CIVI|
member ship: qualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of 1976
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: Unlverstyé):igirnmmgham a

Biography overview:

- Engineer at the Civil Aviation
Authority from 1976 to 1979.

- Partner in an engineering
consulting office from 1979 to
date.

- Member of the Board of Directors of
Masafat Speciaized Transport Company
since its establishment in 2006 to date.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Assas

Concrete Industries Company since its
establishment in 2007 to date.

Engineer Dahoud Y oussef Khalil Kousaya
Director of Operations Department and Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Dgte of 16/06/2005 Ac_ademlc bachel or Of.CIVI|
appointment: qualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1960 Year of 1985

graduation:
. . : : o University of Texas
Nationality: Jordanian University: - United States

Biography overview:

- Head of the Construction Materials
Department at the Arab Center for
Engineering Studies (ACES).

- Quality control manager in the
Jeddah Taif water desalination
project/Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

- Deputy General Manager at the Ready
Mixed Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company.

Mr. Lu'ay Essam Abdel Salam Arafat

Manager of Support Services Department and Finance Manager

Date of | 01/11/2009 Academic Bachelor of Accounting
appointment: qualification: | ACPA/CFC/CBA
Year of Birth: | 1969 Y ear of | 1991
graduation:
Nationality: Jordanian University: University of Mosul — Irag

Biography overview:

- Financid and administrative

- Financial and administrative manager at

manager at Masafat Specialized

Data Serve & Turnkey Solutions/ Saudi

Transport Company. Arabia
- Financial Manager at Al Fardan - Financial Auditor: Jordanian
Company / Qatar. Telecommunications Company.

-16-




Mr. Muhammad Ahmed Ali Gharir
Manager of the Credit and Collection Department and Shareholder Relations Officer

Date of Academic
: 01/01/2002 qualificatio Master of Accounting
appointment: n:
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of 2004
graduation:

Amman Arab University

Nationality: Jordanian University: | for Postgraduate Studies —
Jordan

Biography overview:

- Manager of the Credit and Collection -

Department for the Ready Mixed

Concrete and Construction Supplies

Company.

- Personnel Affairs and Shareholder
Relations Officer for the Ready Mixed
Concrete and Construction Supplies

Company.

Assistant Financial manager of the
Ready Mixed Concrete and Construction
Supplies Company.

3. The names of the major shareholders and the number of shares held by
each of them compared to the previous ones (shareholders who hold
shares exceeding 5% of the company’s capital) are:

2024 2023
NEITTS No-of Per centage No-er Per centage
shares 9 shares 9
Arabian Cement Bahrain

Holding Company 9,166,666 36,7% 9,166,666 36,6%

Areb Bank 2500000 | 10% | 2500000| 10%

Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami 1,348,629 5,4% 1,328,629 5,3%
4. The Company’s competitive position within its sector of activity, its main

markets, its share of the local market, as well as its share of foreign

mar kets;

The Ready-Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company is considered
one of the leading and distinguished companies in the field of ready mix
concrete production, and its main markets are the local market only as this
commodity cannot be marketed externally. There are also no local sources that
enable us to know our share of the local market.

-17-




5. Specific suppliersor major customers, locally or externally:
- Suppliers who constitute 10% or more of the company’s total

purchases are:
Supplier Transaction per centage of total purchases
Raboua Taiba Foundation 30 %
Qatrana Cement Company 18 %

- There is no reliance on specific suppliers, locally or externaly, other
than those mentioned above, who constitute 10% or more of total
purchases.

- There is no reliance on any mgor client, as the company supplies
ready-mixed concrete to a large number of contractors and multiple
projects, and the company does not have any special agreement with
any party or contractor.

- There are no contracts or engagements concluded by the company with
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of
Directors, the General Manager, any employee of the company, or their
relatives.

6. Governmental protection or privileges enjoyed by the company or any of
its products under laws, regulationsor otherwise.
- There is no governmental protection or privileges enjoyed by the
company or any of its products under laws, regulations or otherwise.
- There are no patents, inventions or royalties obtained by the company.

7. Decisions issued by a government, international organizations, or others
have a material impact on the company’s work, products, or competitive
ability.
- There are no decisions issued by the government, internationa

organizations, or others that have a material impact on the company’s

work, products, or competitive ability.

- The company is committed to applying quality standards and according
to the specifications of Jordan Standards and Metrology Organization,
the Royal Scientific Society, and the Ministry of Public Works.

18



8. Organizational Structure
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0.

10.

11.

12.

Risksto which the Company is exposed

Changes in the costs of fuel, raw materials, spare parts, etc., which may

negatively affect costs.

Increasing competition in the local market and its impact on selling prices and

profit margins.

The most important achievements achieved by the Company during the
fiscal year
Improving operating efficiency by modernizing equipment and adopting
advanced production monitoring technologies
Developing and marketing new products such as prefabricated plaster,
prefabricated building clay, self-compacting concrete, and others.

Strengthening and developing public safety procedures
Developing a digital application to facilitate the work of employees in all

departments.

Implementing numerous projects in various sectors and regions

throughout the Kingdom.

Thereisno financial impact of operations of a non-recurring naturethat
occurred during the fiscal year 2024 and are not part of the company’s
main activity.
Time series of realized profits or losses, distributed profits, net
shareholders’ equity, and prices of securitiesissued by the company:

Year | Net realized profits Net shareholders Share | Distributed
(losses) equity cloging profjts
price ratio
2016 4,203,565 Dinars 35,998,750 Dinars 111 8%
2017 2.394.781 Dinars 65,736,309 Dinars 1.05 10%
2018 142,555 Dinars 32,616,763 Dinars 0.54 8%
2019 (3,567,363) Dinars 29,030,463 Dinars 0.38 -
2020 (4,607,272) Dinars 24,397,119 Dinars 0.34 -
2021 610,079 Dinars 25,069,547 Dinars 0.47 -
2022 1,808,554 Dinars 26,841,811 Dinars 0.40 -
2023 4,179,299 Dinars 31,296,184 Dinars 0.84 -
2024 3,962,699 Dinars 35,355,018 Dinars 1.080 -

In the financial statements ending in 2020, there is a financial impact of
operations of a non-recurring nature, which is a decrease in investments in

sister public shareholding companies by an amount of (2,867,637).

-20-




13. Analysis of the company’s financial position and the results of its
businessduring the fiscal year:

Jordanian Dinars, distributed as follows:

Company revenues: The company’s revenues amounted to 58,362,909

Description 2024 — Jordanian Dinar
Revenue from sales with affiliates 57,733,482
Income from investment properties 385,002
Other revenues 145,178
Revenue from the sale of property, machinery and
: 73,585
equipment
Changein the fair value of financial assets at fair value
. 18,496
through profit or loss
Dividends 7,166
Total revenues 58,362,909

B. Budget, profits and losses. The company achieved a net profit of 3,962,699
Jordanian Dinars during the year 2024, compared to a net profit of 4,279,019
Jordanian Dinarsin the year 2023.

C. Sales:

The company's sales of ready-mix concrete were 50,834,949 Jordanian Dinars
for the year 2024. The table below shows the value of sales for the last five

years:
Y ear 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Sales 21,868,683 | 29,338,269 | 39,251,686 | 48,668,400 | 50,834,949
D. Financial ratios:
Description 2024 2023
Gross profit margin 12% 15%
Current ratio 80% 2%
Sales to assetsratio 92% 88%
Current liabilities to shareholders equity 073 0.75
Total revenue to shareholders' equity 1.65 1.609
E. Financial indicators and statements:

Description 2024 / Jordanian Dinar | 2023/ Jordanian Dinar
Authorized capital 25,000,000 25,000,000
Subscribed capital 25,000,000 25,000,000

Total assets 65,372,748 56,711,396

Tota shareholders equity 35,355,018 31,296,184
Total revenues 58,362,909 50,367,878
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14, A- The company’s future plan:

- Develop plans to develop and improve the company’s branches in all aspects.

- Enhance operational efficiency by developing logistical solutions and improving
resource management.

- Increase investment in vocational training and cadre development to ensure the
highest levels of quality and service.

- Continuing to control costs.

B- Important future developments and expectations of the Board of Directors:
- Study the possibility of introducing new products to the building materials
market.

15.  Audit fees: The company’s financial statements are audited by Messrs. Talal
Abu Ghazaleh and Partners where their fees for the year 2024 for the Ready
Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to the following:

Name Fees
Ready mix concrete and construction supplies 13,000 Dinars The .
company company's
Oman Company for the Supply of Construction and . auditor dpes
Heavy Equipment 1,000 Dinars not provi de
Concrete Technology Company 2,000 Dinars anyt(s)zetrr\]/ El}c&s
Masafat Housing Company 1,750 Dinars company
_ _ _ other than
Arab Chinese Company for Trading and Selling 2,500 Dinars | regular audit
Heavy Machinery work.
United Ready Mix Concrete Company 1,250 Dinars
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16. A statement of the number of securities issued by the company and owned by members of the Board of Directors and

their relatives:

No. of shares 31/12/2024

The number
oishares | LR e Controlled
. : . . ares 0. of shares ontro
Name Position | Nationality | held in the by the 31/12/2023 companies
name of the ,
member’s
member .
relatives
per sonally
Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher & Brothers 401.000
Company, represented by Mr. Basem Jamil Chairman | Jordanian she’lres 401,000 shares
Issa Al-Muasher
Mr. Makram Khalil 1brahim Al-Alami Member | Jordanian | 5,000 shares 649 shares
Mr. RejaKhalil Ibrahim Al-Alami Member | Jordanian | LSO | L0051y a600 shares |
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais Member | Jordanian | 5,000 shares 5,000 shares
Messrs. Jawdat Al-Alami & Brothers
. , 5,754 shares 5,754 shares
Company, repre@en'ged by Mr. _Khalll Makram | Member | Jordanian 55,000 shares 55,000 shares
Khalil Al-Alami
Messrs. Arabian Cement Bahrain Holding
Company, represented by:
- Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz Abdullah Al- 9.166.666 9,166,666 shares
Sulaiman Member | Bahraini hares
- Mr. Mu'taz Muhammad Mortada Abdel
Hamid Mortada
- Mr. Turki bin Abdullah bin Abdelaziz argjihi
Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Chalabi Member | Canadian | qoo 288,825 shares
Dr. Marwan Jamil 1ssa Mu'asher Member | Jordanian | 5,000 shares 5,000 shares
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17-B Number of securities owned by senior management:

. ) ) No. of shares
Name Position Nationality 311212004 | 31/12/2023
Engineer Dahoud . :
Y oussef Khalil Assistant Chief |- 4 ion | 12,308 12,328
Executive Officer
Kousaya
Mr. Lu'ay Essam Support services .
Abdel Salam Arafat manager Jordanian
Manager of the
Credit, Collection
Mr. M ohqmmao_l and Shareholder Jordanian 7,068 7,068
Ahmed Ali Gharir )
Relations
Department

* There are no companies controlled by senior management persons and their
relatives.

17- C- Number of securities owned by relatives of members of the Board of
Directors and senior management:

- , . No. of shares
Name Position Nationality 3112/2024 | 3112/2023
Maha Abdel Rahman | Member of the
Khalifa, wife of Rgja Board of Jordanian 175,063 182,073
Khalil Al-Alami Directors

- Relatives of the remaining members of the Board of Directors and senior
management do not own shares in the company.

- There are no companies controlled by members of the board of directors and
their relatives.

- There are no companies controlled by senior management persons and their
relatives.
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18.A- The benefits and rewards enjoyed by the Chairman and members of the

Board of Directors:

. Total
Name Position Annual' AUd't.mg Rewards | annual
transportations | committee ;
benefits
Mr. Bassem Jamil 1ssa Muasher Chairman 6,000 - 55,000 61,000
His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz Vice
Abdullah Al-Sulaiman chairman 6,000 - 5000 | 11,000
Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami Member 6,000 2,000 5,000 13,000
Mr. Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chal abi Member 6,000 2,000 5,000 13,000
Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Muasher Member 6,000 - 5,000 11,000
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais Member 6,000 - 5,000 11,000
Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami Member 6,000 - 5,000 11,000
Mr. Turki bin Aalbrd;jJiIL?h bin Abdelaziz Mermber 6,000 ) 5,000 11,000
Mr. RagjaKhalil Ibrahim Al-Alami Member 6,000 - 5,000 11,000
Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada Abdel |\, 6,000 2,000 5000 | 13,000
Hamid Mortada
Total 60,000 6,000 100,000 | 166,000

18. B- Benefitsand rewards enjoyed by senior management:

Name Position Jordanian Dinar
Engineer RajaKhalil Ibrahim Al-Alami Chief Executive Officer of the company 336,000
Engineer Daoud Y oussef Khalil Kousaya Assistant Chief Executive Officer 96,000
Mr. Lu'ay Essam Abdel Salam Arafat Manager of Finance and Support Services 73,164
Mr. Mohammad Ahmed Ali Gharir Mg}‘:f’;;gg‘%gﬁ?&fggpﬂfn”eﬂa[‘d 27,000
* Due to the nature of the company’s business, a car was allocated to each of the

above managers.

19.

Donations and grants paid by the company during the fiscal year:

Donations Jordanian Dinar
Al Khansa Hospital 24,000
Other donations 15,187
Sheikh Ahmed Al-Salik Zakat and Charity Committee 6.000
Total 45,187

25




1

There are no contracts, projects, or arrangements concluded by the issuing

company with subsidiaries, sister companies, affiliates, the Chairman of the

Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, the General Manager,

any employee of the company, or their relatives (except for):

1- Masafat Specialized Transport Company, being the company
transporting the company’s concrete material.

2- Concrete Technology Company, being the company that provides us
with the fluidizing material.
3- Al-Quds Concrete Industries, as it is considered the auxiliary supplier

of concrete based on the agreed upon project locations.

21. A - The company’s contribution to protecting the environment:

1

2.

B.

An environmentally friendly concrete product was developed so that the
environmental impact in all supply chainsis reduced.

Specia environmental and recycling equipment was installed, in addition to
dust filters and water sprinklers.

The company’s contribution to serving the local community:

The company seeks to provide new job opportunities for people in the areas in which
it operates.

Participatein other partnerships
The company invested the following percentages in the following companies:

6.89% of the capital of Qatraneh Cement Company, amounting to 90,624,000
Dinars.

40.94% of the capital of Masafat Specialized Transport Company, amounting
to 18,500,000 Dinars.

39.9% of the capital of Assas Concrete Industries Company, amounting to
7,120,000 Dinars.

35.32% of the capital of Al-Quds Concrete Industries Company, amounting to
7,460,026 Dinars.

50% of the capital of the Jerusalem Crushers and Quarries Company,
amounting to 15,000 Dinars.

49% of the capital of Al-Hegaz Cement Company, amounting to 294,000
dinars

I mplementing the quiding rules of the corpor ate gover nance quide for companies

listed on the Amman Stock Exchange

During the year 2024, the company adhered to the application of the guidelines
contained in the Governance Guide for Companies Listed on the Amman Stock
Exchange.

-26-



Governancereport
* Information and detailsrelated to the application of corporate
governance provisions and rules

Adherence is made to implementing the governance instructions of listed companies,

as the company has an internal governance system approved by the Board of Directors

and in accordance with corporate governance rules, as follows:

1) Formation of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors consists of ten members who are elected according to the

cumulative voting method by the General Assembly by secret ballot. The term of the

Board is four years. All members of the Board are qualified persons who have

sufficient experience and knowledge of financial and legidlative matters.

2) Duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors has an internal system that determines the tasks, powers and

responsibilities of the Board through:

A. Develop strategies, policies, plans and procedures that will achieve the
company’s interest and objectives, maximize the rights of its shareholders,
and serve the local community.

B. Establishing the necessary procedures to ensure that al shareholders,
including non-Jordanians, obtain their rights and are treated in a manner that
achieves justice and equality without discrimination.

C. Taking the necessary measures to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable legidation.

D. Adopting arisk management policy to which the company may be exposed.

E. Organizing the company’s financial, accounting and administrative matters
according to special internal regulations.

F. Preparing the annual and quarterly reports and a report on the results of the
initial work, in accordance with the provisions of the legidlation in force.

G. Approving the governance report and including it in the company’s annual
report.

H. Establishing rules of professional conduct for the Board of Directors,

executive management and employees of the company and constantly
reviewing and updating them.

l. Ensure that a website is provided for the company, which includes the most
important data and information about the company, provided that this
information is constantly updated.

J. Appointing a liaison officer entrusted with following up on matters related to
governance applications in the company with the Authority.
K. Adopting the company’s disclosure and transparency policy and following up

on its implementation in accordance with the requirements of regulatory
authorities and applicable legidlation.

L. Develop a policy to avoid conflicts of interest and procedures aimed at
preventing insiders in the company from exploiting confidential internal
information to achieve material or moral gains.

M. Establishing a clear delegation policy in the company, according to which the
authorized persons and the limits of the powers delegated to them are
determined.

N. Appointing the general manager of the company and terminating his services.

O. Ensure the availability of the necessary administrative and technical

competence and experience among the senior executive management
personnel to carry out the tasks assigned to them, determine their tasks and
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powers, review their performance of their tasks, and the extent to which they
apply the established policies, plans and procedures.

Taking necessary steps to ensure the existence of internal control over the
company’s work progress, including establishing a special unit for oversight
and internal audit whose mission is to ensure compliance with the
implementation of the provisions of applicable legislation, the requirements
of regulatory authorities, internal systems, and policies, plans, and
procedures established by the Board of Directors.

Adopting the replacement and succession policy and approving the
company’s human resources and training policy.

Developing the company’s social responsibility policy and programs towards
the local community and the environment.

Establishing a mechanism to receive complaints and suggestions submitted
by shareholders, including their suggestions for including certain topics on
the agenda of the General Assembly meeting in a way that ensures that they
are studied and the appropriate decision is taken regarding them within a
specific period of time.

Develop a mechanism that allows shareholders who own at least 5% of the
company’s subscribed shares to add items to the agenda of the company’s
ordinary general assembly meeting before sending it in its final form to
shareholders, provided that the authority is provided with this mechanism.
Approving the policy for granting rewards, benefits, incentives and salaries
in the company.

Develop a policy regulating the relationship with stakeholders to ensure the
implementation of the company’s obligations towards them, preserve their
rights, provide them with the necessary information, and establish good
relations with them.
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Member ships of board membersin other publicjoint stock companies

Mr. Bassem Jamil M uasher

The Jordan Worsted Mills Company.
Premier Business and Projects Co.
Arab International Hotels

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Masafat Specialized Transport Company
Assas Concrete Industries Company

Dr. Marwan Jamil M uasher

Jordan Kuwait Bank
Masafat Specialized Transport Company

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais

Assas Concrete Industries Company

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi

Assas Concrete Industries Company
Masafat Specialized Transport Company

Enagineer Khalil Makram Al-Alami

Assas Concrete Industries Company

Enagineer Raja K halil Al-Alami

Masafat Specialized Transport Company
Assas Concrete Industries Company

Board of Directors member
Chairman of Board of Directors
Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member
Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member
Chairman of Board of Directors

Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member
Board of Directors member

Board of Directors member

Vice chairman of Board of Directors
Chairman of Board of Directors

The following are board members in Jordanian public joint stock companies:

- His Excellency Sheikh Saud bin Abdulaziz Abdullah Al-Sulaiman.
- Mr. Turki bin Abdullah bin Abdelaziz alrgjihi.
- Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada Abdel Hamid Mortada.
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Names of member s of the Board of Directorsfor the year 2024

Name

Executive or
non-executive

Independent or
non-independent

Mr. Bassem Jamil Muasher

Non-executive

Non-independent

Sheikh Saud Abdulaziz Al-Sulaiman

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Shal abi

Non-executive

Independent

Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher

Non-executive

Non-independent

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Turki bin Abdullah bin Abdelaziz argjihi

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada Abdel Hamid
Mortada

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Khalil Makram Al-Alami

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais

Non-executive

Independent

Engineer Raja Khalil Al-Alami

Executive

Non-independent
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* Committees emanating from the Board of Directors
* Names of the Chairman and members of the committees emanating from the
Board of Directors:
1. Audit Committee:
Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi - Chairman of the Committee

Date of 2/5/2009 Academic Master'sdegreein
member ship: qualification: | Mechanical Engineering

Year of Year of

Birth: 1952 graduation: 1976
Nationality: Canadian University: University _of_London B
Britain

Biography overview:
- Heworked in thefield of - Board of Directors member, Assas

petroleum investmentsin the Concrete Industries Company.

United Arab Emirates.

- Board of Directors member of
Masafat Specialized Transport
Company sinceitsfounding in
2006 to date.

Engineer Makram Khalil 1brahim Al-Alami - Member of the Audit Committee

Date of _ /51995 Acg(_jem ic bachel or of_CiviI
member ship: gualification: Engineering
Year of Birth: 1952 Year of 1978
graduation:
. o . . o Purdue University -
Nationality: Jordanian University: United States
Biography overview :
- General Manager and Partner in an - Chairman of the Board of Directors of
exchange company from 1979- Masafat Specialized Transport
2005. Company since its establishment in
- Chairman of the Board of 2006 to 2021.
Directors of the Ready Mixed - Board of Directors member of Assas
Concrete and Construction Concrete Industries Company since its
Supplies Company sinceits establishment in 2007 to date.

establishment in 1995.
- Genera Manager of Masafat
Specialized Transport Company
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Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Murtada Abdul Hamid Murtada - Member of the Audit

Committee
Date of Academic Bachelor of
member ship: 01/01/2022 qualification: Commerce
Year of Birth: 1977 Year of 1996
graduation:
. . . . . TantaUniversity —
Nationality: Egyptian University:
y agyp y Egypt

Biography overview:

- Deputy Chief Executive Officer for
Financial Affairs at the Arab
Cement Company from 2013 to
date.

- General Manager of the Financial
Operations Sector at Bupa Arabia
for Cooperative Insurance 2012-
2013,

- Genera Manager of Group
Financial Affairs at Halwani
Brothers Company 2007-2012.

- Heheld severd positionsin the
financial management of Unilever
Mashreq, and hislast position in the
company was the group financial
controller, in addition to the
company’s strategy implementation
officer.

- Heheld afellowship and
membership in the American
Ingtitute of Certified Public
Accountants and Auditors since
2002.

2. Remuneration and Nominations Committee:

Mr. Sohrab Owais

Chairman of the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee

Engineer Makram Al-Alami

Member of the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee

Mr. Bassem Muasher

Member of the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee

3. Governance Committee:

Mr. Sohrab Owais

Chairman of the Governance Committee

Mr. Bassem Muasher

Member of the Governance Committee

4. Risk Management Committee:

Mr. Bassem Muasher

Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee

Engineer Dahoud Kosaya Member of the Risk Management
Committee
Mr. Lu'ay Arafat Member of the Risk Management

Committee
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Executive positions and the names of their occupants

- Chief Executive Officer, Engineer RgjaKhalil Al-Alami.
- Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Director of Operations Department,

Engineer Dahoud Kosaya

- Manager of Support Services Department and Financial Director, Mr. Lu'ay

Arafat.

- Manager of the Credit, Collection and Shareholder Relations Department,

Mohammad Ahmed Gharir.

Names of the legal members of the Board of Directors

Name

Executive or
Non-executive

Independent or
non-independent

Sheikh Saud Abdulaziz Al-Sulaiman,
representative of the Arabian Cement
Company, Bahrain

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Turki bin Abdullah bin Abdelaziz arajihi

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Mu'taz Mohammed Murtada,
representative of the Arabian Cement
Company, Bahrain

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Khalil Makram Al-Alami, representative
of Jawdat Al-Alami & Brothers Company

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Bassem Jamil Al-Muasher, representative
of Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher & Brothers
Company

Non-executive

Non-independent

Names of the natural members of the Board of Directors

Name

Executive or
Non-executive

Independent or
non-independent

Engineer Raja Khalil Al-Alami

Executive

Non-independent

Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi

Non-executive

Independent

Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher

Non-executive

Non-independent

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais

Non-executive

Independent
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Number of meetings of each committee emanating from the Board of Directors

during the year 2024:

Board of Diretorsmembers | yim, | SOl | gupose | onbooe | somons | somoe
Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Sheikh Saud Abdulaziz Al-Sulaiman | Not Present | Not Present | Not Present | Present | Present | Present
Mr. Turki bin ﬁ?d;l;larr]: bin Abdulaziz Present Present Present Present | Present Present
Mr. Mu'taz Mohamed Mortada Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Mr. Khalil Makram Al-Alami Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Mr. Bassem Jamil Muasher Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Mr. Anas Mahmoud Al-Shal abi Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Engineer RgjaKhail Al-Alami Present Present Present Present | Present | Present
Auditing Committee members Ol;'zr; 4 %2/02%22 ;?2'821 'ig/gggg
Mr. Anas Al-Shalabi Present Present Present Present
Engineer Makram Al-Alami Present Present Present Present
Mr. Mu'taz Mortada Present Present Present Present
Risk management committee members 0|7:/|2roszt4 ?2/02%22
Mr. Bassem Muasher Present Present
Engineer Dawood Kousaya Present Present
Mr. Lu'ay Arafat Present Present
Governance committee members 0';/';; 4 ?302%22
Mr. Sohrab Owais Present Present
Mr. Bassem Muasher Present Present
Nominations and remuner ation committee members 1';/'2?24 %?/%%gg
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Owais Present Present
Mr. Bassem Jamil Muasher Present Present
Engineer Makram Khalil Al-Alami Present Present




Number of Board of Directors meetings, indicating the number of attendance
times during the year 2024:

ISP

One meeting was held between the Audit Committee and Talal Abu Ghazaleh,
the company’s external auditor.

Mr. Tariq Rabah Hindi was appointed as a liaison officer to follow up on
matters related to the application of corporate governance at the Securities
Commission.

Recommendations of the Board of Directorsfor the General Assembly meeting:

Reciting the proceedings of the previous regular meeting of the General
Assembly.

Reading the Board of Directors’ report for the fiscal year 2024 and
discussing the future plan for 2025.

Listen to the company’s auditors’ report on its budget and final accounts for
the year 2024.

Discussing and approving the balance sheet and final accounts for the fiscal
year ending on 31/12/2024.

Discharge the Board of Directors within the limits permitted by law.
Electing auditors for the fiscal year 2025 and authorizing the Board of
Directors to determine their fees.

Any other matters the General Assembly proposes to include in the agendain
accordance with the provisions of Article (171) of the Companies Law.

Dear Distinguished Shareholders,

After you listened to its report, the Board of Directors is pleased to extend its sincere
thanks to all shareholders and customers for their continued trust and support for the
company.

The Board extends its sincere thanks to all the company’s employees, management,
employees and workers for the services and sincere efforts they have provided to
achieve the company’s goals and objectives, wishing them continued progress and

prosperity.

Chairman of Board of Directors
Bassem Jamil I ssa Mu'asher

e
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Acknowledgment

We acknowledge the validity, accuracy, and completeness of the information and
data contained in the annual report for the year ending 31/12/2024.

Chairman of Board of
Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Financial manager

Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa Mu'asher

Engineer RgjaKhalil Al-
Alami

Mr. Lu'ay Essam Arafat
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Acknowledgment of the Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors acknowledges that there are no fundamental
matters that may affect the company’s continuity during the year 2025.

- The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the financia statements for the year 2024 and for providing an
effective control system for the company.

Mr. Bassem Jamil 1ssa Mu'asher
Chairman of Board of Directors
3
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His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul Aziz
Abdullah Al-Sulaiman
Member
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Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais
Member
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Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami
Member
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Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Engineer Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Member
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Mr. Mu'taz Mohammad Mortada Engineer Mu'taz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi
Member
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Member

Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-

Chalabi
Member
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Dr. Marwan Jamil |1ssa M uasher
Member

/
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company
and itssubsidiaries
Public joint stock limited company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated financial statements
And the independent auditor's report

For the year ending December 31, 2024
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated Financial Statement

and Independent Auditor's Report
for the year ended December 31, 2024



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Independent auditor's report

Consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024

Consolidated staterment of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2024
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2024
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear ended December 31, 2024

Mates b the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

Page

1.2

630



Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. Internatio nal

AN B E

Global Company for Auditing and Accounting uu@ e e ey b BO A
HIGHIESS

Independent Auditors Report

To Messrs. Shareholders

Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplics
Public Shareholding Comparny

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Opinion

we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ready Mix Concrete and Construchion Supplies
(Public Shareholding Cempany] and it's subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as al December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive inceme,
consolidated statement of changes i equily and consalidated statement of cash flows for the year then
anded. and nates to the consolidated financial statements, including & summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our apiion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash fhows for
the year then ended in aceordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit based on International Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities towards these

standards are clarified in our report within the parageaph of responsibility of the auditor on auditing the
consolidated financial slatements.

We are independent from the company based on the requirements of International Ethical Standards
Boards of accountants “A guide to ethical conduct for professional accountants” and the ethical
requirements that is celated to our audit of financial statements, in addition to our commitment bo othes
athical responsibilities, based on their requirements

We believe that the andit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Eey Awudit Matlers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professienal judgment, were of most signilicance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial staterments as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matbers.

Expected credit losses Scope of audil
The company has adopted the reguirement of we conducted comprehensive evaluations to
expected credit losses for Inbernational Financial  determine the main contrals wsed in determining

Reporting Standard Ne. (9). The allowance for  expected credit losses, data collecion and it

expected credit losses ameunting to [T 4895877 completeness, and the relevant satimates and

a5 of December 31, 2024. assumptions usex] by management. We teshed the
miain control systems on the modeling process
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Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. Internatiomsl

»otes ko Lhe consolidated financial statements for I!I'_III! year enided December 31, 2023

Investment property impairment

According  to  the requirements of the
International Financial reporting standards, the
investment property s initially valued at cost,
including transaction costs, the earrying values
of investment property are reviewed [for

Scope of andit

Our audit procedures included, among other
things, obtaining an evaluation of certified real
pstate experts to assist us in determining the
market value of those investment properties at the
date of the copsolidated Ffnancial statements

impairment when events or changes in the repork.
circumstances indicate the carrying value may

not be recoverable. If any such indication of
impairment exists, impairments losses are
calculated in accordance with impairment of

assels policy.

Other Information

Management s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
[information included in the annual report, bul does not include the consolidated financial
skatements and our auditors’ report tereon ]

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with ocur audit of the consolidated financial stalements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing s, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance Ffor the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard, and for
such internal control a5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparahon of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managament
pither intends to liguidate the Company or Lo cease operations, or has mo realistic alternative
but to dosa,

Those charged with governance are responsible for averseeing the Company's consolidated
financial reperting process,

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Congolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material messtatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to tssue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Internabional
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial state ments
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standard on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s [dentify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to frawd or erros, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstalement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control

s Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used amd the reasonableness of
accounling estimates and related disclosures made by management

o Corclude on the approprigteness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the aundit evidence obtalned, whether a8 material uncertainty
axigts related to events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability b0 continue as a going concern. 1F we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw abtention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidatad financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conelugions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, fubure events or conditions may cause the Company o cease
to conbinue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and conbent of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions amd events in & manner that achieves fair
presentation.

=  Obtain Sufficlent and appropriate audit evidence about the financial information of
establichments or business acHvibes within the group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
completion of the group audit. We remain absolutely responsible for the audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
plarmed scope and bming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 2 statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the fmancial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditers’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure aboul the matter of when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should mot be communicated in
pur report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expectad to
oubweigh the public interest benefils of such commumnication
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Mites to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Company has proper accounting records which are, in all material respects, consistent
with the consolidated financial statements, we recommend to approve these [inancial
slatements by the general assembly.

Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Ca, International

Mohammad Al-Azrag
{License & 1000}
Amman February 12,2025




Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company
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ASSETS
feon-current Assels
Property, plants and equipment

[rwestnients m associales

[rwestment in financial assels at fair valwe through
piher comprehensive inoome

[rwestmenk propecty

Checks under collaction and on hand - non-curren
Tatal Mog-currenl Assels

Cument Asiets

[rventory

Irmvestment i fnancial assets at fair vatue through

pratit or loss

Diggs Froan related parties

Acrounis recefvable and otber debit balances

Trade recrivables

Checks under collection and on hand - curment partion
hecks on hand - related parties

Current accounts at banks

Tatal Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

PHEES

Nabes 2024 2013
1D o

3 17540061 16,267,960
4 12,856,110 12,706,263
5 4,836,150 6,536,190
b 4,111,304 4,267 B5|
173,000 2000

a1, 716,677 39,750,267

7 1,364,793 1,559,944
5 337,10 7751
g 21K, 750 452,807
1d 33464 1,350,540
1 5,040,559 4,467,001
B 67,502 8,803,486

9 0,000 .
605,419 30,818

20,656,071 16,961,129
61370748 56,711,386

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these financial stataements
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024

Modes 024 i
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES n 1]
Fquity
Capikal 35,000,000 25,000,000
Aclelitional paid-in capital 1,600,000 1,600,000
Statufory reserve 1 3,538,851 15406
Voluntary reserve 13 1537633 3166571
Change infair value of imvestments in financil assets at fakr value
thrauaph other consprefensive income - associates [ 104.845) | 200,950
Fetained eamings facoumulabed asses) 1.553,377 {18175
Net Equity 35,354,018 31,296,184
Liabilities
Mon -Cierrend LEabilities
Loane - o -current portion 14 [, 252408 1941634
Tokal Mon Carreet Liakilities 1,132 548 1,941 h34
Currend Liabilities
D fo related pardies g 6,014,553 407114
Cither credit balarces 15 20 ey 1382504
Income fax provisien {13 551 275
Deferred checks 1,210,974 TANT
Deferred checks - related parbies E 172500 3933512
Trade payabdes 17 1L5M4.213 Eal0615
Loans - current portion 1 1,101,570 1,112,069
Banks overdradt 18 H 54 Ba5T2
Total Curcent Liabilities 15,735,082 1ATIETE
Total Liabilities b1 AR L 15,415 112
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 62,372,748 36,711,396

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these finaneial stataements

z



Ready Mix Concrete and Congtruction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2024

Nt sales

Cost of sales

Grogs profit

Cther revenies, net

Share of proft of asociales

Administrative sllig and disibution expenses
Financetos:
Inpairment kosses of investments in asaciates
Profit before tax and sational comtribution
[reome tx

National coneribubos

Incoene bax padd on priat yeas

Profit

Other comprebensive neome

Changeia fair walue of investsent in finandial assets thraughather

enaprehensive come - ssCiaes
Total comprehensive incomse
Weighled average mumber of shares
Profit per share

Naes 0 0

I jo
ErERLE, 45788 907
1 [R5 [4244421)
T 7,341,486
0 el 2,971
W40 107283
il 137,386 [3,18,830)
(154,78) 150,739
i 06,9224
4583486 540,849
16 (7 35 (771 2aH)
15 42850 {1533
{2039 5139
1562599 429,019
96,135 175,354
4015 504 445437
5,000,000 25,000,000

0

__usp __ ump

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these Financial stataemeants
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Su pplics
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jerdan

Conselidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profil before tax and sational conlribulion
Adjustments for -

Daopreciation

Ciains from sade of property, plantand egilpmaent
Imparment losses of investmant inassociales

Share of profit af asspciakes

Change in fair value of investment in Anancial assct at fair
value throwgh profit o loss

Investment proporty depreciation
Expectod credit lossos

Change in operating assets and lialsilities
[wernkbary

D from relakad parbes

Accounts recrivable and ether dobil balances
Irde receivables

Choecks ander collection and on havd
Checks o hand - relabed parties

Doe bo related parbes

Db eved it balanoes

Dreferred checks

e farred checks - related parbies

Trade payables

[ncome tax pakd

Mot cash fromy operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, planks and equipasial
[nvoatment in financial assct at B valos theoigh profit or loss

[rwestments in asseclaies

Puechase of assecwates

Disposal of imvistment propesy

Péet cash from investing activities

_CAS-I-[ FLOWS TROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans

Banks overdratl

Mat cash fram financing activities

Met change In cash and cash equvilents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year
Casls and cash equivalents - end of year

Information abesl non cash ransactiong

Transfer from projects under comstruction to propaerty, plant amd
pijuipment

The accompanying notes constitute an integral p

a2

e 1 o3
m o
4 B&3,486 5 AKX A49
2330962 1,366,791
(7303 59,509
- 66,922
{54.5,408) (L0072, BE3)
(1EA96) (70, 133)
54,550 56,550
573,167 21,144
(126545} 1524583
2ABO5T 130950
[1,955,104) {351,911)
(1,147.005) Q457 97
o ) FORS521
(5100 1100
1,543,679 [1.268,8260)
176413 192./73
451,757 (3002, 268)
(4,208, BES) {1,020,601)
39736 1 446:2,500
5,007,358 6,527, 780
(AT0ITS) {71,245)
A, 654,983 450,505
BANEZH) {1621.216)
56,713 65,341
(11,095 (#4750
586,684 563,210
(295,041 "
. 250,000
(3,057,914) (921,415)
(719,435) (1,938, 176)
(385,0248) (3534, 664)
{1,304,463) 15,492, BE0)
el WL 36,250
A40E1E 34,565
54159 340,814
G5, 240 1,128,601

arl of these financial stataements



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

1. General information

- Legal status and activity for parent company and subsidiaries as follows:

flegistrativn date ol (e
Campaap nasw gl @ais Mialary of Industary dnd Trade Regivleiio Na. sain artilins

Coesnect, esiablish, e and sanage
poadiat ey plank and tading wilhal

Bcady Mlin Corcrede and mhabli = G kinal of voneswin, Lerbweons, bricks and

Comstruction Suppbes Coompaay - i bl o banrdi Bock melal g and (o.ds
ol i ks el therede indgice
andl s e longdom

fumman foe Carerichon Supply anal ke ol roveirucion

Equiprment Sajipht Corepary Liritoed ability company Fesrisary 25, 3004 {53 erpmenl ol thair spare aris

Cencrote Technglogy Corspary L liability commpary [y 36, 303 SEY Mapfiisuriag mosctiacsion rarrish

Arabie Dhincee Campars foe i"::‘:] I‘C"Hd"ln:'l ks opapnan

Lepsrhidd apel Seleof Equigment  Limstnd Rabibty compury Seplenier 1 06 o g

Uriiesd Pl Bvlix Cararoie Klanal rewsky i

Cmpary Frivabt Labelity compm s Db 1K, 2008 m Ll s T
Frschuse ol Lands , aparimnts
pomibre L 28 resek withoal

Whasali for Hovssng Compiiy il lideility comparny jebe 15T A Lo el

_ The company consists of the following branches and factories. Amman -Zarga - Agaba - Ramtha -
Sahab -Swemeh - Qustal -Shafa Badran -Karak- Potash - Flusun -Mafrag.
The company granted according to Development and Special Zone Law the following tax rates:

I:q&ha branch { Agaba Special Economic Zone} %5
1 Ma'an branch {Development £one) 5

_ The board of directors has approved the consolidated financial statement on January 29, 2025 and it
requires the approval of the General Assembly

2 Basis for preparation of conselidated financial statements and material accountant policies
2.1 Basis for financial statement preparation

- Conaplidated Financial statements preparation framewaork
The financia] statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting Stancard Board.

- Measurement bases used jn preparing the consolidated financial statemants

The finaneial statements have been prepared on the historieal cost basis except for measurement
of certain items at bases other than historical cost

- Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinar (JO), which is the

funcHonal cuerency of the entity
2-2 Using of estimates

- When preparing of Fnancial statements, managemenl uses judgments, assessments and
assumplions that affect applying the accounting policies and currying amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual result may differ from these estimates

- Change in estimates are reviewed on a constant basis and shall be recognized in the period of the
change, and future periods if the change affects them.

- For example, estimates may be required for doubtful and bad debts, inventory obsolescence,
useful lives of depreciable assets, provisions, and biclogical assets and any legal cases against the
entity.



Ready Mix Concrete and Constraction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company

Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of fordan
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

2.3 Standards and Interpretations issued that became effective

| Standard or description Effective date

imberpretation number.

[FRS HOL{16) Lease Amandments that clarify how a seller-lessee January 1, 2024

contract subsequently measures sala and

leaseback ransaction

Amendments to IASno. | Amendments to financial stalements presentation iﬂﬂu"ﬂjﬂlﬁm

(i} clasifies the Classification of Liabilities as Current | {Peferred from
January 1,2022)

o Mon-current based on the contraciual
arrangements in place at the reporting date-
Classification is neither affectad by entity’s
expectation nor do events ocour atter finamcial
report dabe.

[ Amendments to [AS
ne(7) and 1FRS no.(7)

Amendments ask enlities to provide qualitative
and quantimtive information about supplier
fimance arrangements

l

January 1, 2024

Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

Standard or | Description Effective date

interpretation number |

Amendments to LAS21) | Lack of Exchangeability of foreign currencies as January 1,2025
usual

Amendments b [FRS Amendments 1o the Classification and January 1, 2026

(7} and (%) Measurement of Financial Instruments

[FES (18) Lssued

Presentation and disclosure in financial
statements that will replace [AS 1 {Presentabon of
Financial Statements)

January 12027

TFRS (19) Lssued

disclosure raquirements for subsidiaries without
Public Accountability

January 1,2027




Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Sharcholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Mutes to the consolidated financial statements For the year ended Drecembrer 31, 2024

2-4 Summary of material accounting policies
- Basis of congolidation

— The financial statement of parent company consists the financial statement of (Ready Mix
Concrete & Construction supplies) and its subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of
Company name ownership

%
Amman for Construction Equipment Supply Company 100
Conerele Techraology Company Lot
Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and Sale of Equipmenl 100
Masafat for Housing Company 100
United Ready Mix Concrete Company 1a0

_ Control is presumed to exist when the parent i exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its invalvement through its power over the investee, in exceptional circumstances, it can be
clearly demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute control

— Tntergroup balances, transactions, income and expenses shall be eliminated in full.

~ Mon-controlling interests represant the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the parent.

- If a parent loses a contrel of a subsidiary, the parent derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary and non-controlling interests and other squities, recognize any profit or loss reesu | bed
from loss of control in the statement of comprehensive income, rECOgNize any investment
retained after loss of control at its fair value,

— Financial instruments

Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial
liability or equity instrument of anotier entiky

- Financial assets

- A Financial asset is any assel that is:

{a) Cash,

(b} An equity instrument of another entity:

(c) A contractual right to receive cash or another Fnancial asset from another entiky, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under condilions that
are potentially favorable to the entity.

(d) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

— Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assel, but for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
casts are recognized in profit or loss.

_ Financial assets are classified to three categories as follows:

= Amoriized cost

~ Fair value through other comprehensive income

~ Falr value through profit or loss.

_ A financial asset is measured at amertized cost if both of the following conditions ame mek

{a} The asset is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

{b} The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
a2 solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amoumnt outstanding,



Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

- Fifancial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
foliowing conditions are mek
_ The Fmancial assets is held within a business model whese objective 15 o hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
— The contrachual tarms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash fows that
are solaly payments of principal and inlerests on that principal amount cutstanding.

— All other financial assets {excluding financial assets at amortized cost or at fair value though
othet comprehensive income) are subsequently meagured at fair value in profit or losses,

— O dndtial l‘ECHET!!iHﬂn ol an fquil;:ll investment that is mot held for t't'ﬂ.'liiﬂg. the enbby may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investments fair value in other
comprehensive ncome.

Subsequent measurement of finangial assels

Subsequently financial assets are measured as follows:

Financial assets Subsequent measurement

Are subsequently measured al fair value
Financial assots at fair value

through profit or loss net gains or losses, including interesks revenues or

dividends, are recogmized in profit or loss

Are subsequently measured at amertized costusing
effective interests methodd.

— Amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

- Inkerests income, gain and loss of foreign exchange
and impairment loss are recognized in profit or loss.,

— Gain and loss from dispesal are recognized In profit
of loess.

Are subsequently measured at fair value

Financial asserts al amortized
st

- Interests income 18 calculated using effective inferests
method, gains and losses from foreign exchange,
Debts instruments at their value impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss
through other comprehensive — Other net gains or losses are recognized in other
income comprehensive income.
(On derecognition accumulated gains and losses in
other comprehansive income are reclassified into
profit or loss

Are subseqquently measured at fair value

- Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss,

Equity instruments at fair value unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
through other comprehensive part of investment cost.
IO — Diher net gains and losses are recognized in other

comprehensive income (OCT) and are never
reclasgified from equity o profit or loss




Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of [ordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

Derecopnition of financial assets
Derecognition of financial assets (o a part of a group of similar financial assets) when;
- The contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial assets expire, or
- Tt transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows ol the financial assels or assume i
contractual obligation to pay the cash Aows entirely to a third party.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is any liabality that is:

{a} A contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or o
exchange financial assets of financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

(b A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

— Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less Eransaction Costs, directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of those labilities, excepl for the financial labilities
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

_ After initial recognition, the entity measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost using the
offactive interest method, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are measurad at fair value and other determined financial liabiliies which are not
measurad under amortized cost method. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are stated at Fair value, with any resulting gain or loss from change in fair value is
recognized through profit or loss.

Trade payables and accruals
Trache payables and accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and have been either invoiced or formally agreed with the suppliers or not.

Offsetting finangial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to
sot off amounts and intends either to settle in & net basis, or through realize the assat and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and short term depasits at Banks with a makturiky
date of three months o less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

rade reor las

" Trade receivables are nen-desivative financial assets with fived or determinable payments
that are not quoted i an active market.

- Trade receivables are stated at invoices amount net of allowance for expected credit losses
which represents the collective impairment of receivables.

Investments in associates

- An associate is an entity over which the investor has sigmficant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence i the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over thosa policies, if the entity holds %20 percent or more of the voting power of the
frvestae, it is presumed that the entity has signified influence.

— The entity’s investment in ils associate is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate & initially recognized at
cost and the earrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’ share of the profit or
loss of the investee is recognized in the investor's profit or loss. Distributions receved from an
investes reduce the carrying amount of the investment

10



Ready Mix Conerete and Consiruction Supplies
Public Sharchelding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 204

_ The investor's share of other comprehensive income of the trvestor changes is recognized in
other comprehensive income of the entity.

— Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the investor's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities is recognized as goodwill The goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not assassed, annually, for impairment separately.
Any excess of the investor's share of the nat fair value of the ldentifialde assets and lialilities
aver the cost of acquisition is recognized as income.

_ Financial statement of the associate are prepared for the same date as the Anancial statements
of the entity. And when necessary the accounting policies of the associate are amended to
comply with the accounting policies of the entity.

_ After applying the equity methad, the entity determine, if necessary, to recognize impairmen
losses on its investments in associates, and detevmine at the date of the financial statement
that the investment in associate is impaired, and if so, the entity calculats the impairment
amount as the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount which is
recognized as a loss in the income statement.

- When significant influence loss of the associate ocour, the entity shall measure the retained
interest at fair value, and recognize the difference between the carrying amount of the
investment and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing in the
statement of income.

~ Intra-entity profit and loss transactions are elimina ted to the extent of the investor's interest in
the relevant associate,

Impairment of financial assels

— At each reporting dale, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried al amortized
cost and debt securities at FVTOCI are credit - impaired. A financial asset is "credit impaired™
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have occurred.

— The entity recognizers loss allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on:

— Financial assets measured at amortized cost
— Debt investments measured at FVOCI
- (Contract assets.

- The entity measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

- Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal ko lifetime ECLs.

- When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recogniion and when estimabing ECLs, the Entity considers reasonable and
supportable information thal is relevant and available without undue cost or effort based in
the entitys historical experience and forward looking information.

— The entity considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- —The client is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the entity in full, without recourse by the
entity to actions such as realizing security (if any); or
—The financial asset is more than 365 days past due,

_ Loss allowances for Financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

_ A financial assets is written of when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractial cash fows. The entity write of the gross carrying amount of the financial asset s
in case of, liquidation, bankruptcy or issuance of a court ruling to reject the claim for financial
asset,

11



Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Compamy
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consalidated fimr:riaJ statements for the year ended Decenber 31, 2024

In 5

— Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

— Inventory costs comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

- Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale,

— The cost of inventory is assigned by using the weighted-average cost formula,

3 a d lants a uipment

- Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at their cost being their purchase price
plus any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary far them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

_ After initial recognition, the property, plant and equipment are carried, in e statement of
financial positon, at their cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairmeant.

The depreciation charge for each period s recognized as expense. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight line basis, which reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits
are expected to be consumed over tho estmated wsaful life of the asset: using the following

rates:
Category 2124 L
gt ¥
Bubldings & consinaction E] 18
Vehiclkes & piLnvps 515 5-15
Devices, eulprsnt, ook, generaton,
water lanks and wells s 5.7
Machines & squipment fi:15 51%
Drecaration & lease improvienssis =20 15
Balidozers & horklilks 510 =7
Furnisura & péfice equipawen IC-20 San
Softwase & compalers 10215 525

— The estimated useful lives are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

~ The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
cvents or changes in the circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If
any such indication of impairment exists, impairments lasses are calculated in accordance.
with impairment of assets policy.

- On the subsequent derecognition (sale or retirement) of the property, plants and equipment,
the resulting gain or loss, being the differemce between the net d.isl:H:lE?II proceed, if any, and
the carrying amount, i included in profit or loss.

- Amount paid to build up property and equipment is initally carried to projects under
construction account. When the project becomes ready for use, it will be bransferred to
property and equipment caption.



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

Investment property

~ Investment property is property {land or building- or part of a building- or both):
— Held by the enlity to earn rentals,
_ For capital appreciation, or both, rather than for use in production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of business.

- Tnvestment property is measured initially at its cost, inclading transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property s carried, in the siatement of financial position,
at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Land is not
depreciated,

- Buildings depreciation charge for each period is recogmized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Depreciation is caloulated on a straight line basis, which reflects the
pattern in which the Buildings' future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity over their estimated useful life of 25 years.

— The estimated useful lives aré reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

— The carrying values of investments property are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in the circumstances indicate the carrying value may not ke recoverable. If any such
indication of impairment exists, impairments losses are calcu lated in accordance with
impatrment of assets policy,

- On the subsequent derecognition (sale or retivement) of the investment property, the resulting
gain or Joss, being the differcnce between the net disposal proceed, if any, and tha carrying
amount, is included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

— At each statement of financial position date, management reviews the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets (property, plant and equipment and investment property) o determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impatred.

— If any such indicalion exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, being the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount i the higher of
asset's fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The asset's fair value is the amount for
which that asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's length
tramsaction, The value in use is the present value of the future cash Hows expected b be
derived from the asset,

- For the purpose of impairment valuation, assels are grouped at the lower level that have cash
flow independently (cash generating unit), previous impairment for non-financial assels
{excluding goodwill) is reviewed for the possibility of reversal at the date of the financial
statements.

— An impairment loss is recognized immediately as loss.

- Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amou nt of the asset is
increased to the revised astimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount
due ko reversal should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost would have been
if the impairment had not been recognized in prior years. A reversal of an Impairment loss is
recognized immediately as income

Provisions

- Provisions are present obligations (legal or constructive) resufted from past events, the
sottlerment of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obligations can be estimated
reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the best eshmate of the expenditure
required to setthe the present obligation at the statement of financial position date.

- Provisions reviewed and adjusted al each statement of financial position date. If cutllows, o
settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the provision is recorded as income.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Mutes to the consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, il

— i the entity expected to be reimbursed for a part or full provision, the reimbursement shall be
recognized within assets, when it is vienually certain and its value can be measured reliably.

- In the statement of comprehensive income, the expense relating fto a provision may be
presented net of the amount recognized for seimbursement.

_ Where the effect of the fime value of money is matetial, provisions are discounted by using a
currently pre-tax discount rate that reflect the risks specific to the liability, when using
discount any increase in provision is recognized as a finamcial cost over Hme.

i arties

_ Transactions with related parties represent transfer of resources, services, or obligations
bebween related parties.

_ Terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are approved by management
End of service indemnikty
Indemnity Is provided for in accordance with Jordanian Labor Laws and Regulations.
Earnings per share

Eamnings per share is calculated by dividing profit er loss, altributable ko ordinary shareholders,
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during Hee year.

Bevenue recognition

— The entity recognize revenue from sale of good and rendering of service when control s
transferred to the customer.

- Revenues are recognized based on consideration specified in contract with customer that
expected to be received excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties

_ Revenue is reduced for amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the
entity.

Sale of ready mix concrete

The company sells ready mix concrate to customers through its own sales outlets. Revenue is
recognized at the transfer of control which represent the delivery of ready concrete Lo customers at
their desigrated locations and oblain approved veceipt voucher from them and the ssvance of the
invoice,

Dividend and interest revenue

_ Dividend revenue from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right 1o receive
payment is established.

_ Intersst revenue is accrued on a Hime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rake applicable.

Lease cls

The entity assesses at the commencement date of the lease agreement whether the contract is a
lease or includes a lease agreement. And if the contract is in whale or in part transfer the right to
contrel e use of a specific asset from one party to another for a specified pericd of ime in
exchange for a consideration, the entity recognizes the right-of- use assels and lzase lability with
the exception of low value and for short term leases (e those with a lease term of 12 months or
less) in which the entity recognizes the lease payments as operafing expenses on either a straight-
line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis is more representalive of the time period
lo depreciate the economic benefits of the leased assets.



Ready Mix Congrete and Construction Supplics
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Haishemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Decemirer 31, 2024

B PP B SR S P

The cotity as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the contract transfer all risks and benefits
of ownership to the lesses The other types of rental contracts are classified as operating contracts.
Contracts are classified as starting the rental contract

Lease income from operating lease is recognized in income on a stralght-line basis over Hw term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred by the entity in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased assel and recognized as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. Assets leased under operating leases ans
depreciated based on the same depreciation policy adopbed by the entity for similar assels.

Borrowing costs

- Borrowing costs are inberest and other costs that an enbity incurs in conneclion with the
borrowing of funds.
- Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

Income tax

Income tax is calculated in accordance with Jordanian laws and regulations.

Forsign .

= In preparing the fnancial stabements, transachions in currencies other than the funchonal
currency (foreign currencies) are racorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

— Al each statement of financial position date, monelary ibems denominated in furei:gn CLUFFEnCies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the statement date (closing rate), Non-monetary items
that are measured im terms of historical cost in a f-:u‘eiEn CUrFency are translated using the
exchange rate ab the date of the fransaction. Mon-monetary ibems that ave measured at Fair value
in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
debermimed

~ Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items ab rates different from those at which they were ranslated on inftial recognition during
the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognized in profit or loss in the penod
in which they arise.

Contingent liabilifics
- Conlingent labilities are possible obligations depending oo whether some uncertain future

events occur, or they are present cbligations but payments are not probable or the amounts

cannot be measured reliably.
— Contingent liabilities are not recopnized in the linancial statements.

13
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Ready Mix Concrete and Canabruction Supplies

Public Sharcholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jardan

Motes to the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2024

*) Included in the lands mentioned above a land far value of JD 216,63 with the right of disposition
is prohibited, also, there are lands with a book value of JD 1,167,793, and buildings with a net
book value of JO 1,080,535 mortgaged in faver of Cairo Amman Bank in exchange for a loam
granted ko the company, as mentioned in Note Ne. (14), where estimated value of the lands and
the building on which it is located according to the estimation report of Cairo Amman Bank

amounted to ][ 5,505,000,
(*}Among the cars mentioned ahove, there is & car with a net book value of JD 122 583 morlgaged,

and vehicles with a net book value of |0 27,745 that arne selzed,
{***) Deprecintion expense Was distributed at the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2024 2023
o D
Manufacturing expenses 2,106,012 1,314,668
Administrative expenses 133,980 51,723
Taotal 2,239,992 1,366,391
— = = — L
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Sapplies

Public Sharehol ding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
Motes to the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2024

4. Investments in associates
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the financial statement for the year ended December 51, 2024

1 Movement of investment through the yvear was as follows:

Lk 2023

o |y
Balance - begnning of year 12,706,253 11,354,158
Adddition during the year R0 -
Dristritrbed cash dividends [5905 954} B e |
Share of results of associabes M5 405 1,072,333

Share of change in fair vilue of investments i financial

assets through other comprehersive mcome -associakes %.133 i
Closing the excess of the investment valuation i the

receivable of Jerusalesy Crushers and CQuarrying

company 9300 5.2

Impairment losses of investment in associates . i, 22}

Balance - end of year 12,956,122 123045, 2653
——————E

{**) According to Board of Directors Decision Na, (), held on April 20, 2023, it was decided to fully
impaire the investment in the [nternational Cards Company and the debt owed within two years
starting from 2023,

(***} The following are summary of information about assocate companies:

Price ol share
Compary e Db MO Tl e Tl lnbikes Beerue Pl fioss)
P i P i o

sl o Specitioed Trampt Al T LA 1O |G
Rusas for Concrle Fomdos L IFe. L1 IR et b
Ay aady Mie Coneree Compary LIy AT (Lt |15 24 L
Inerazal Bz & Frasc M Co {8 LIk A B (15735
(rieriol Canke Cempuy ™) 18 LY BTl L (17338
esssalem Croshersand Quarrying LLC lred W T : (Bl
Al Censml Campary ™ Uied
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Suppliss
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the Financial statement for Lhe year ended December 31, 2024

(***/*} The summary information has been disclosed for International Brokerage and Financial Markets
Co. and the [ast financial statements sswed for the year 2021

(***/**) The summary information of the Global Cards Company for the ast financial staterments issued
for the yaar 2020 has been disclosed.

(™™**)  Among the investments, there are 50,000 sharas in associabe companies with a market valoe of TD
32,150 as of Decamber 31, 2024 reserved according to the instructions of the Securities axchange
Commission for membership in tha boards of directors of these companies.

(*****} Based on the decision of the Board of Directors of the company held on October 23, 2024, a
majority decision was laken to enter into an investment in Hijaz Cement Company - LLC with
49% of the company's capital amounting to 600,000 [ordaman Dinars.

3. Investments in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

04 223

K 1D
Balance - beginning of year i, 36,1 6836190
Balance - end of year it, 636,190 436,190

(*JThe above mentioned item represents %589 of Qutraneh Cement Company capital entirely pledged in
favor of Arab Cement Company - Saudi Shareholding Company.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construdtion Supplies
Fulblic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004

7. Inventory

0 pa [

Jo D
Raw malerial HI, 145 T4
Spare parts Fi1,292 0.7
Letters of credit & poods in transil 3LrH 14,2
Fintsh goods - subsidiary 137367 15057
Lese: Slow maving inventory provision () (347,510} (35,402
Net 1,386,790 1,259,944

{*) The movenient of provision during the year is as follows;

24 223
o o
Balance = beginning of year 355,402 A55,4002
Write off during the year {8,052 -
Balance - end of year 37310 355,402
-

B, Investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or [oss

2024 1023

o [
Balance - baginning of year iy 127631
Sale and purchase during the year, net 41095 84,750
Change in fair value 18430 ML13z
Balance - end of year 337,104 2T 513

(*JAmong the above-mentioned investments, there is a reservation on 6,263 shares of ferusalem Concrete
Industries Company, worth 7,478 [ordanian Dinacs.



I-'.E-a.d].' Mix Concrete and Construction 5I-'l]'-'|_:||il-"-l
Public Ehuﬁ:n]lﬁﬂs ﬂump:ln].'
Amman = The Hashemite Kinﬁdnm of Jordan

Motex to the fonsodidated financial statements for the year ended Decomber 1, 224

9. Related parties

- Relaled parbies transaction consist of transachon with major sharcholders and companies which the
major shareholders have control over them. Transaction with related parties are trading in nature.

— Due from related party represent Following:

Fui k] 2023
o D
Jerusalem Crushers and Quarrying LLC 164,714 7.581
Intecnativral Cards Company 38041 36,98
Aszas for Concrela Products 1,04 425,519
Masafat for Car Leasing 14,254 18,7359
International Brokerage & Flnancial Markels Co. 52 5,254
Al-Hijaz Cement Company 2,625 -
Advanced Education Company ] -
Assas Modern Transporfation Company 120
Less: Expected credit losses provision {41,204) {41.204)
Tatal 204,750 452 807
= Checks on hand - related parties consist of the following:
2024 2023
10 D
Asas Madern Transportation Company o 000
Total o.000 =
———
- Related parties payables represent the following:
2 33
o o
The Fund Company for Housing 3062729 1426903
Masafat for Specialized Transport 2175258 1,648 975
Qatrara Cemenl Company 644,754 657298
Saving fund for the employes of Ready Mix Concrate
and Construction Supplies company 114,542 g
Al Cradds for Ready Mix concrete Co. 17,047 2853530
Jordanian Vehicle Tracking 5edl 5%
Togal 6,074,893 4,071,214
o




Beady Mix Concrefe and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Diecember 31, 2024

- Deferred checks - related parties consist of the following:

201 2023

D JD
Clatrana Cement Company 1,139,500 5321519
Masafat for Specialized Transport 430,000 430,000
The Fund Company for Housirg 154,583 121,383
fordan Co, for Crushers and Supply of Construction
Machinery and Equipment B52 -
Tatal 1,725,004 5,933,922

- Main:u transacltion with associabes stabed 1o the skstement of o mpmhnz-nsi_w_v income were as follows:

24 223
o 1L
Purchases 3.196.712 2.855,0%)
Ready mix concrele sales 683,515 1045408
Feal estate and purips rental kAW HE] 24,500
Oithers 20,085 19,885
1. Accounts receivable and other debit balances
hi2a M2y
o o
Letter of credil and gusrantees deposit 2EE0509 744 29}
Refundable deposits 261,595 AT e
Prepayments on income and sales bax 175,767 &5, 163
Prepaid sxpenses 136,058 17 S04
Employes receivabies SEUG 72920
Petly cash and aibers 28 R0 2oL
Social security work Injury claims 3135 T
Income tax deposit - Hoenses and impocts 7 .
Tatal 3,314,544 1558 540




Heady Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

11. Trade receivahble

plirk
o D
Trade receivables {*) 8,936,736 879543
Less: Expected credit losses allowance (™) (4,595,877) {4,325 409}
Net 5,040,559 4457021
{*)} Receivables aging based on contracts with customers date are as following:
20 2023
o o
From 1 ta 60 days 4807317 4,590,660
From &1 to 120 days 338,172 194,208
From 121 to 180 days 304, 212 135503
From 181 o 365 days 156,491 131,563
Mure than 365 days 401554 BN
Tatal 2.936,730 B,795,430
=
-(*) Allowance for expected credit losses movement during the year
M paiFE ]
D D
Balance - beginning of year 4,325,409 4,023 417
Frovided during the year 573,167 319,540
Incurred fosses {5,699 (14, 45)
Halance - end of year 4,835,877 4325409

12 Statutory reserve

Public Sharehalding Company [Parent)

Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company's subscribed capital.
However, the Company may, with the approval of the General Assembly, continue to deduct this
annual ratio until this reserve equals the subscribed capital of the Company in full Such reserve
is not available for dividends distribution

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and o rebuild it in
accordance with the provisions of the law

Limited Liability Company {Subsidiary)

Statutory reseeve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals of the Company’s subscribed capital. Such reserve is not
available for dividends distributon,

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meeting to

quench its losses from the accumuolated amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in
accordance with the provisions of the law



Ready Mix Copcrele and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashembte Bingdom of Jordan

Motes bo the consolidated fimancial statemiants for the year ended December 31, 2024

Private Sharcholding Company {Subsidia

Slatutory reserve is allocaled according to the Jordantan Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company’s subscribed capital Such
reserve is not available for dividends distribution.

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves bo decide in an extraordinary mectng bo
quench its losses from the accumulated ameunts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in
accordance with the provisions of the law.

13. Voluntary reserve

This reserve 15 determined in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law by allocating not
more than 20% annually of the profil to this reserwve.

14. Loans
Pl mn
Current porlbon. MNod-cament poclion Tidal tutal
o 1o ID o
im Amsnan Bank: parent [*) G000 B9 588 1,444,938 2149, 005
Al Bank Laan () sutsidiary 00 A ]| H75,000 4B5,052
Cairo Amman Fark [} - subsidiary 1,301 - 1,301 175,000
Capital Bank Loan () - subsidiary 0265 . $0,255 3,655
Cairo Amman Bark Loan (*****
sulmisiary 04 L TTTH .
Tatal 1101570 L2¥LE%6 2,334,248 3463,780

{*) The loan mentioned is granted by the Cario Bank to the Parent Company in the amount of JD
3000.000 at an interast rate of 4% and is repayable under 60 equal monthly installments, each
installment is JI2 50,000 and the first installment is due on Januwary 31, 2022, Where if's
guaranteed by a real estale morigage on the company’s lands and buildings, with a net book
value of [T 2,334 956, as menbioned m note Mo, {3),

{(**) The loan mentioned above s granted by the Cairo Bank ko the Concrete Technalogy company
{subsidiary} for an amount of JU 900,000 at an interest rate of 4%. It is repayable on a 36 equal
installments. Each installment is equal JD 25000 and thess facilities are granted with a
puarantee of the owner.

{(***) The loan mentioned above is granted by the Cairo Amman Bank to Concrete Technology
Company (Subsidiary) for amount of [0 175,000 at an interest rate of 2%. Itis repayable under
23 equal installments, each installment is equal 7,609 and the fiest installment was due on
February 28, 2024 , and these facilities were granted under the personal guarantee of Mr. Rajaa
Ehalil Alami.

(****) The above loan & granted by the Capital Bank to the United Beady Mix Concrete
{subsidiary} for an amount of JI? 250,000 at an interest rate of 2%. Il is repayable 36 equal
instaflments. Each installment is TI 6,946 and the ficst Installment was due on October 22, 2021
under the personal guarantes of bMr. Bajaa Khalil Alami

(=} This ibem represents the balance of the loan obiained by the company from Cairo Amman
Bank to the Concrete Technology Company (a subsidiary) with a ceiling of 100,000 Jordanian
dinars at am anncual inferest rate of 4%, and the loan s repaid under 63 monthly instaliments
equal to the value of each installment of 1,667 Jordanian dinars, or the fiest installment s due
on May 30, 2024, as these faciliies were granted with the owner's guaranbee
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Notes bo the conkolidated bnancial statsmvents for the year onded Decamber 51, 2004

15. Other eredit balanees
224 23
o D
Rewards provision (%) B76,7 ¥ 625,413
Maclinery guarantees allowance - subsiciary 250,000 -
Sharcholders depasits 243,195 51,93
Aecrued expensas 6,743 194 846
Linearned rent T 0632 207 408
Emnployes vacation provisin (=) 136,303 182,752
Enaf of service indermnity - provison (=) 044X 129,765
Sabes tax deposits 02,01 2,012
Potential lawseits provision {***) o1, 24 153,207
Social securily depasits FER 2N 48,165
Matiopal contribubion deposits{™ ™) 42,850 15463
Employees Savings Fund 3101 M7
Emiployees income tax deposits 2877 2 6%
Social solidarity fund a5 4,840
Employess payable 20 Tl
Taotal 210 857 1,883,604
(*} Reward provision
024 maa
Jo ¥
Balance - beginning of year 625,413 1475
Provided during the year a93, 2k B0
Paid during the year {541,941) (357 062}
Balance - end of year 676,736 E-i‘i-,ll'i

7
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Moles to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2124

{**) Employee vacation provision

(**** Potential lawsuaits provision

28

024 2023
D 8
Balance - begmning of year 182,752 [ 10,707
Provided during the year 8169 129076
Faid during the year (3, 718) {37.031)
Balance - end of year 134,203 142,752
{**") End of service indemnity provision
2024 i | ]
jDo o
Ealance - beginning of year 129,765 41,765
Provided during the year 2603 115421
Pald during the year (T3R8 (27 421)
Balance - end of year 105420 129,765

2024 2023

[0 b
Balance - beginning of year 155,207 46,249
Provided during the year 106,958
Paid during the vear {61,958)
Balance - end of year 91,249 EJ.!EL

{*#=44) Mational contribution deposits

224 N3

JD D
Balance - beginning of vear 15,465 2654
Provided during the year - subsidiary 5,898 5243
Provided during the year 33,952 10,050
Paid during the year {15,465 (2.518)
Balance - end of year 42,850 15,464



Beady bix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 3, 2024

1, Income tax

2024 223

o 2
Balance = beginning of year 227 65 28,548
Provided during the year-subsidiary 177,650 101,522
Pravidad dur.inE thi year H7 T (a9, 951
Provided during the year-Aqaba branch and
development zome . 2905
Advance paymenls on income bax account 2,905 421700
Paid during the year {325, 020) (63,936)
Amortizntion for defrred tax assels - (oG, 15
Balance = end of year TG BT i [

Ready Mix Concrete & Construction Supplics Co

— The tax status of the COMmpany hag boen settled unbl the yrear of 2020 the tax return for year Ty |
wits submitted during the legal period, and the tax consultant believes that the provision is
sufficient
The sales tax returns have been audited and accepted until 12-2021 and 1- 2022 Subsequent
returns were submitted until the last tax period 10, 11- 2024 within the legal period, and they
have neot been audited to date.

Development zones
The tax status of the company has been settled until the year of 2021 the tax return for year 272

was submitted during the legal period.

- The sales tax returns were audited and accepted until the period 12-2021 and 1-2022, and the
audit report has not been ssued to date, The returns were submitted for the subsequent tax
periods until the last tax period 10 and 11-2024 within the legal period and have not been
audited to data

Agaba branch
- The settlement of the tax status has been completed until 2022,

—5Sales tax returns have been audited and accepted until the period 8-2024

Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and Sale of Equipment
A final settlement was reached between the company and the [ncome and Sales Tax Department

for the year 2018 and the tax return was submitted to income tax department for year 2019, 2020,
2021 and 2022 within the legal period.

Amman for Construction Eguipment Supply Company

A final settlerment has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to year 2020,
tax return for year 2021 submitted with in legal period and in the opimion of the tax consultant the
provision is safficient

Concrete Technology Company

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
for the year 2019, and no final settlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department
for the years 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 noting that the tax return was submitted within the legal
period, and the tax consultant believes that the provision is suffickent.
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Maotes to the consolidated financial statemants for the year ended December 31, 2034

- United Ready Mix Concrete Company

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Departmeant
until the of year 2020 and tax return for 2023 has been accepted, and the tax returns for year 2021
and 2022 have been submitted within the legal period and have not been reviewed vet, and the tax

consultant believes that the provision is sufficient.

— Masafat for Housing Company

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sakes Tax Department
ip boovear 2023,

17. Trade payables
Trade payables concentrate in four receivables comprising 37 % of total payables.

1. Banks overdrafi

Bank [nterest rate 4 203
T & D
Arab bank 935 b0 B0 403,237
Cairo Amrnan Bank - parent 0,35 GRims 5556
Caure Amman Bank - subsidiary 933 N 134,145
Toal 300,944 85,072
1%, Cost of sale

2024 2023

oy D
Faw material used in production 39,038,512 33,301,756
Marufacturing cost (*) 11,685,188 9,142,665

Total 50,723,700 42 494,921




Resdy Mix Concrote and Construction Supplies
Public Sharehalding Company
Ammian - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes bo Ehe consolidated fimancial statements for the year ended December 35, 2024

{*) Manufacturing cost consist of the following.

20124 2023
o mn
i, Fuel and pumps rerial 2AERAYY 1,761, 00
Salarbos, wages and relatod bonefits 2271 REE 15572
Dheprrecistion 2100602 L314.668
baintcnance and vehicle expensos 1,664,309 1,541,209
s B e ] nmpln-!,lnn-: vacabion 1 100,729 03,244
Emyployees rewards I LRSS ad, 160
Social security IFESEY 266063
Ingurandcos md Hoense 250,379 19578
Pump bail expenses 2504XN) -
Waler anid eleciricity 26,387 20 A0
Employees savings 27655 FTO3
Subscriptions, ks and Stamps Pt G kg
Security 57267 el
Treavel and wansportation 53,500 40,425
Rents 251124 75 1E2
on = refundable cement purchases tax 44 63 +3,207
Huospitality 345,064 25,807
Phoew aowd postal 35,103 37,845
General safety and work ingury 23457 FRORC I
Mikscellaneous 24547 17338
Information technology I1.83E b 445
Transportation and storage expenses 20 2ED 26550
Donations £ ] 1457
Skationery 17352 13.553
Laboratory bests 14,6591 SEaT
Advertising 4,550 3,269
Tatal ) 11,685,144 0,142,555
0. hher revenues, niet
ey 2023
jn il
Renis 385,002 363,742
Crthwers 145,178 BO.58R
Galn from sale of property, plant and equipment 73,585 59.509
Change in fair value of financial assels at fair
value through profit or loss 18,454 7132
Dividends 71646
Mt -529.41?“ — 582,971
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Fublic Shareholdlng Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 3, 2024

Administrative , selling and distribution

it 023
L e

Salarics, wages & related benefits {*) 1,261,004 1,155,543
Expected credit g 7367 60144
Emiployees rewarnds MG 199437
[ preciation 133,980 51,755
Socal security 120,721 113,072
[msurmnce 113077 0,10
Prodessiconal fees RLELE 476
Chairman and hoard of directors rowards SLCKHD 50,000
Bograd of directors rewards BOEHD S.000
Mlen-daductible tax LB G169
Transportation alkxwancg of board of directors and

audit, risk and govornanoe commition e 0 BE 0
[repreciatien of investment propesty 56,550 56,550
[nlermation technriegy 53,355 L
Subscriptions, fees & stamps 16,412 74,544
[romations 45,187 11,705
Traval & transportation 134862 5424
Employees saving 44,561 5414
Chepplimie 446,468 20,347
Collpcton commissions 341K 29,500
End of service indemumity 04 98,759
Ellectescity, wiater & Fuck il 35,787
Rents 16,314 13, (K
Telecommunication rR ]| 4512
Miscellanaous M8 15749
Adwertising 17,240 12534
Work inguries 15585 2225
Bank finds & guaranton 15404 TL6AT
Cleaning & maintenance 1a.bad R
Haospitality 13,264 25,50
Annual vaeations allowance EAT 139, 7R8
Vihickes 7954 6,366
Stationerny & printings B, 24 1Z41%
Training 1ERD 3840
Potential lmwsult - B5,958
Securiny and puard - 7136
Tatal 34T 9G 31681830

(*) Within salaries, wages and related benefits an amount of [0} 477,972 whEh represent salaries and
benefits for the higher management of company.
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Motes to the comsolidated finangial statemients for the year ended December 31, 2024

22, Profit per share

2024 23
o ID
Profit 3.59632,699 4279019
Weighted average number of shares 25,000, 000 75 000,000
Profit per share D 159 JD 171
23. Contingent labilities

Valwes Margins Ml

14 1 (1]
Guaranbeas and [elter of cradie ] Tl {1,504 958 117,967

24, Issues
As stated in the company’s lawyer's books, there are cases filed by the company against third parties
3,648,854 Jordanian dinars, and there & a lawsait filed by third parties against the company of
unspecified value, and these cases are still pending before the competent courts, and in the opinion of
the legal advisor, the allocations registered in the company’s books are sufficient,

25, Risk management

a)

b)

Capital risk:

Regularly, the capital structure i reviewed and the cost of capital and the risks associated with
capital are considered. In addition, capital is managed properly to ensure continuing as a going
concern while maximizing the return through the optimization of the debt and equity balance,

Currency risk:
- Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates
- The risk arises on cartain ransactions denominabed in foreign currencies, which imposes sort of
risk due to fluckuations in exchange rates during the year.
— Most of foreign currency transactions ane in USD, and [D exchange rate is fixed against USD

Inkerest rate rigl:

— Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or Fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will
Ructuate because of changes in market interast rates.

— The risk arises on exposure to a fluctuation in market interest rates resulting from borrowings
and depositing in banks.

- The risk is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between [ixed and floating interest rates
balances during the financial year,



Keady Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the consalidated fimn:i_ﬁ[g_r_alemenls. for the year ended December 31, 204

= The following table shows the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in interest rates
paid by the entity on borrowing from the banks:

The effect on
Az ot December 31, 2023 Change n fnterest profit (loss)
% D
Owverdrafts and loans : 0.5 L {13,178)

d} Dther price rigk:

- Other price risk is the risk that the Fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

- The risk asises from investing in equity investments. [nvestment impairment loss was calculated
which its market value have declined

- The following table shows the sensitivity to profit or loss and equity to the changes in the [sted
prices of investments in equity instruments, assuming no changes to the rest of other variablas:

The effect on profit  The effect onowners

As at December 31, 2024 Change in price {lass) equity

By L8] n
Investment in financial assets ot fair valee through
profit or ks 45 168855 164,855

The effect on profit - The effect on owners

Az at December 31, 2023 Change in price [lnss) ety

% D D
[rvestment in financial assets ai fair value through
profit or loss 45 13,875 13,875

e} Credit risk:

= Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an abligation

= Reguiarly, the credit ratings of debtors and the volume of transactions with those debtors
during the year are monitored,

— Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of debbars, also adequate
provisions for doubtful receivalles s taken.

- The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the Minancial statements represents the -
maximum exposure o credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral
obtained.

[} Liguidity rish:
- Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeling obligations associated with
fimancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.
- Liquidity risk is managed through monitoring cash flows and matching with miaturity dakes of
the financial assets and liabilities,

3



Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
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Ammian - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes 1o the consolidated fnancial statemnents for the year ended December 31, 2024

Private Shareholding Company {Subsidiary]

Statutory reserve is allocated according to the [ordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company’s subscribed capital. Such
reserve is not available for dividends distribution.

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves ko decide in an extracrdinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulabed amounts in statwary reserve, and to rebuild it in
accordance with the provisions of the law.

13, Yoluntary reserve

This reserve is determined in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law by allocating not
more than 20% annually of the profit to this reserve.

14. Loans
kg 2023
Cormenl portion Mon-currenl portion Tidal batal
o o 1o o
Calrs Amman Band- parend "} ROThOGH 4095k 1,445 15 1145 905
Arab Hank Lozn {*- subsidiary 3000 32500 05,0 485052
Cairo A Benk () - subsidiary 51401 . 41,30 175,004
Cirpital Bask Logn (™) - sulsidiary 90,355 . 9,245 M3 E55
Ciira Amman Bank Loan (=***}
subsidiary 20,004 g 74
Tetal L1015 1232 6% L33, 268 105370

(*} The loan mentioned is granted by the Cario Bank to the Parent Company in the amount of [0
3,000,000 at an interest rate of 4% and & repayable under 60 equal monthly installments, each
instaliment s JD 50000 and the first installment s due on January 31, 2022. Where it's
guaranteed by a real estate mortgage on the company's lands and buildings, with a net book
value of 1 2,334,956, as mentionad i note Me, {3

{**) The loan mentioned above is granted by the Cairo Bank to the Concrete Technology company
(subsidiary) for an amount of JI 900,000 at an interest rate of 4%, [t is repayable on a 36 aqual
installments. Each installment is equal JD 25,000 and these facilities are granted with a
guaranbtae of the owner,

{"**} The loan mentioned above is granted by the Cairo Amman Bank to Concrete Technology
Company (Subsidiary) for amount of TD 175,000 at an interest rate of 2%. [t is repayable under
23 equal installments, each installment is equal 7,609 and the first installment was due on
February 28, 2024 , and these facilities were granted under the persomal guarantee of Mr. Rajaa
Ehalil Alarmni

{(****) The above loan is granted by the Capital Bank i the United Ready Mix Concrete
(subsidiary) for an amount of [0 230,000 at an interest rate of 2%. It is repayable 36 equal
installments. Each installment is JD 6946 and the first installment was due on Ociober 22, 2021
under the personal guarantee of Mr. Rajaa Khalil Alami

(*****} This itam represaniz the balance of the loan obkained by the company from Cairo Amman
Bank to the Concrete Technology Company (a subsidiary) with a ceiling of 100.000 Jordanian
dinars at an annoal interest rate of 4%, and the loan i tepaid wndee 63 monthly installments
equal to the value of each installment of 1,667 Jordanian dinars, or the first installinent i5 due
on Ma}' 3, 2024, as these facilites were granted with the owner's guarantes.
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Motes o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

Administrative , selling and distribution

Salarckes, wages & rolatod bepefits (*)

Expected crodit sses
Employees rewards
Depreciation

Social socurity
Insurancoe

Frofecsions] Foeos

Chabrman amd Doand of direotors rewards

Board of direckers rewasds
Mom-deductible tax

Transporation allvwansce of board of directors and
audit, risk and goverance commities

Deprociabion of Wvies bt pEOparey

Information technology
Subseriptions, foes & stamps
Daonations

Travel & ransporalion
Employoes saving
Oneertime

Collecbon commissions
Emd of service ndemniby
Electricity, water & fuel
Reonts

Telrvommunica Hin
hisoellnnaeous
Advertsing

Work injuries

Bank foes & guaranies
Cleaning 4 mainbenane
Haospitality

Annual vacations allowanoe
Wehiclea

Stationery de printings
Training

Pobemnbial lnweaiidl

Sr_-n:unr::,r and gunrd
Tuowtal

rre—

2024 2023
Ja I
1,261,004 1,195,543
573,167 361,144
302,935 199487
133,980 51,723
120,721 113,072
113,077 BO,109
100,940 47346
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,004
T4.811 00,169
&6,000 G 000
56,550 56,550
53,395 35,291
46,812 74.589
45,187 11,703
43,862 85,424
40,061 38414
46,468 50,147
29.000 29,500
29,014 QR TRD
27,097 35,787
75314 13,006
23,991 4,322
20,418 21379
17,280 12,939
15,585 2,225
15,404 21,637
16,887 13.988
13,264 25,006
8168 129,7E8
7.558 o, 360
5,204 12,413
2,839 3,880
: 85,954
- 7.236
%, 447,396 3,181,530

(") Within salaries, wages and related benefits an amount of I 477,972 which represent salaries and

benefits for the higher management of company.
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= —m

—The following table shows the maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31;

Lo Bluan | year Mpre fkam 1 yrar

Diescriplion Flra [ e | by
Einanchi assels: o o JE¥ m
[nvestmenls in ssoclakzs - - L1954 12 123K 2
Inwrstreeni i il oty ol B value lmagh
other compezhoasive oame - - AR [T ]
Investreent in Foanses] ascty of Far valee throsgh
o o less AT sl -
Checks urder collection amd an harel AT L3118 11008 3,01
Chiackes it batai] - nielkad jurties 33080 : 3
e Frean selalel ganiks 2750 A1 : -
Arpming mosvabs aid olhos dokil Balines 109795 L8151 - -
Trade coonvablos EHIET L4070 - '
Caonmtb weroen e b bark BISAES AEEIS >
Tohal 18,954,400 15524 214 14,565,311 15EHASE
Fimirecul |Eal=2ities:
Dhext Ie elabind particn LY o] LI 2L : -
(e ek by LE11AG k75,195 - .
Deberred chacks Liinse TEIIT - -
Desfierrend il - roluted paies 15,05 ELLEE AH 4 -
Taadk pryabies 1574305 RELNLE]S - -
Loara 1.A0.5A1 L1106 11516 1948 274
Banha cimnlnab ] BESTT -
Tatal 14303 3036104 1,232,658 LM1AM

26, Fair value of financial instroments

— The table below represents the fair value of the financial instruments using valuation mathod. there
are different levels as follows:
— Level 1: listed preces (unadjusted) in active markets lor identical assets or liabilities,
— Level 2 inputs rather than prices listed in level 1 and observable for the asset or lability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices).
— Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability is not based on comparable market data that can be
observed (non-observable inputs).

Levels
Asal December 31, 2024 1 2 Total
Financial Assets | I o o
Irvestment in fmancial assets &t fair vales (Brough
profit or foss 330 - e o 11 £
Irrvestment in Fmancial assess a8 foir value theough
atber compeehensive income - 583,14 i, £36,190
Tiolal JIT A0 £EN,150 2173

- Book value of financial instruments is almost equal to the fair value.



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
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Maotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024

Financial statement for the subsidiary

The consolidated financil statement includes the financial statement of the subsidinries as ot
December 31, 2024 as follows:

_ Keliised umings
Cowgary nanr Liegal emily i in Capial Tokdl hasels Tol lsbiliies  hecamitafeed fospes)
1 o o o

Amurunor oo Egapaent Sapay Conpeny L L] nm X 0
LConcrele Terariol gy Conspany LLE i) Rl | HEW Hifs
Araba: Chinese Compeng fot Learehald apd Sale of
Fquiprat LLE s KT 181, o
United eudiy s Comrete o PLC REIT 5B7H 4 T
osaf b Fioesing Compary LLC L] Bl i [

27. Possible effects of economic fluctuations

As a result of the current global conflict, where the entity ook into account any possible impact of fhe
current economic fluckuations in the inputs of future macroeconomic Factors when determining the
severity and probability of economic scenarios o determine the expectad credit losses

28, Reclassification
2023 balances have been reclassified to conform to the adopted classification in 2024
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